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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

FOR THE DISTRICT OF HAWAI'I

RODNEY-EMILE PIEDVACHE,

Plaintiff,

VS.

GOVERNOR DAVID IGE,et al,

Defendants.

Civil No. 16-00138 DKW-RLP

ORDER GRANTING (1) GOVERNOR
DAVID IGE AND FIRST LADY
DAWN IGE’S MOTION TO
DISMISS; (2) SENATOR MAZIE
HIRONO AND SENATOR BRIAN
SCHATZ'S MOTION TO DISMISS;
(3) THE HONORABLE TULSI
GABBARD'’S MOTION TO DISMISS;
(4) LINDA KWOK KAI YUN
SCHATZ'S MOTION TO DISMISS;
AND (5) HAWAII POLICE
DEPARTMENT'S MOTION TO
DISMISS

ORDER GRANTING (1) GOVERNOR DAVID IGE AND FIRST LADY
DAWN IGE’S MOTION TO DISMI SS; (2) SENATOR MAZIE HIRONO
AND SENATOR BRIAN SCHATZ'S MO TION TO DISMISS; (3) THE
HONORABLE TULSI GABBARD’S MO TION TO DISMISS; (4) LINDA
KWOK KAI YUN SCHATZ'S MOTION TO DISMISS; AND
(5) HAWAII POLICE DEPARTME NT'S MOTION TO DISMISS

INTRODUCTION

Plaintiff Rodney-Emile Piedvache wasested in Hilo, Hawai'i for failure
to comply with drivers’ licensing and rtar vehicle registration requirements and

faces ongoing prosecution in state courtlmcharges stemming from that arrest.
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Piedvache contends that he is exefrrn governmental statutes and regulations
that require motor vehicle operatorsctamply with licensing and registration
requirements on public roadways. On March 24, 2016, Piedvache, proceeding pro
se, filed a Complaint against the Governbthe State of Hawaii and his wife;
members of the Hawaii congressional dektgon and their spouses; the County of
Hawaii Police Departmennd individual officers involve in his arrest; and the
Hawaii Tribune Herald newspapelieging violations of 42 U.S.C. § 1983,
copyright law, and crimindaw. Because the Complaifails to state a claim for
relief or to provide a valid basis fordlCourt’'s subject matter jurisdiction, the
Court GRANTS defendants’ motions to disnisPiedvache is GRANTED limited
leave to file an amended complaint in adamnce with the terms of this order by no
later than November 28, 2016.

BACKGROUND

According to Piedvache’s Complaint:

On or about January 2, 2016agproximately 9:00 am, while
plaintiff was traveling in his truck on a public roadway in Hilo,
Plaintiff was arrested and orddreo obtain a drivers license and
an automobile license, etcstiand on what the Supreme Court
says when they speak these words, “The right of a citizen to
travel upon the public highways and to transport his property
thereon, by horse-drawn cage, wagon, or automobilis, not

a mere privilege whit may be permitted grohibited at will,

but a common rightvhich he has under his right to life, liberty

'Pursuant to Local Rule 7.2(d), the Court fitldsse matters suitable for disposition without a
hearing.



and the pursuit of happinessndér this constitutional guaranty
one may, therefore, under normal conditions, travel at his
inclination along the public highwa or in public places, and
while conducting himself in aarderly and decent manner,
neither interfering with nor disturbing another’s rights, he will
be protected, not only in his pers but in his safe conduct.”

* k% %

These events occurred in Hildawaii near the outdoor market

on a Saturday morning while there were lots of people shopping
there. These things were danea public phce where there

were witnesses and a videééa and posted on [YouTube] of

the arrest.

Complaint at 4-5.

Following his arrest, the Hawaii Tiuine Herald “wrote a piece in their
newspaper about [Piedvache] due togbkce report without [his] express written
consent.” Complaint at 5. Piedvache alleges, “| raatithe police officers about
my copyright and tried to show it togim. They refused to acknowledge it and
laughed at me.” Complaint at 5.

The Defendants in this case has deprived the Plaintiff of his
constitutional rights under the colof law, custom or usage,
conspiracy to so deprive and/or failure, neglect or refusal to
protect plaintiff from said conspiracy when it was in their
power to do so. They were also in violation of breaking the
copyright laws of this countrgs | have a copyright on my
name which they had no right to use without my express,

written consent.

Complaint at 4.



From what the Court can discerne@vache named Gover Ige, Senator
Schatz, Senator Hironond Congresswoman Gabbarddefendants because they
conspired with others to deprive himlaé constitutional rights and “failed to
protect [him] from said conspiracy althoutitey have been notified and [are] in a
position to do so.* Complaint at 5.

Piedvache seeks “one hundred billare hundred forty two million dollars
($100,142,000,000) which weowld like to have in lawful US Silver Dollars,” in
addition to the following relief:

Plaintiff asks the court to ordéhe Hawaii Police Department

to Cease and Desist to harass phaintiff while traveling on the

public highways on the Big Islandl’hey are continuing at the

present time to harass me wiitkets and continuous court

hearings. | would also ask this court for an order to have the

venue changed from the State courts to this court that this

matter can be resolved. Tha&sam they charged me for my

release from their unlawful arrest was in the amount of $1,025.
Complaint at 6.

Defendants seek dismissal with prejudiéell claims colorably alleged in

the Complaint. In opposition to the motigf8edvache raises several issues not

addressed in the Complaint relating toltish certificate, Social Security card,

Piedvache alleges that he named severdéfgndants’ spouses as parties because:

The wives (husbands) are to the bhedhe plaintiff[']s knowledge and
belief and are named above and aregdias a protection to the plaintiff
against their spouses unlawful dssion of assets or attempted
conveyances of property in an atigt to defraud legitimate creditors.

Complaint at 4.



and the conduct of County of Hawaii Polio€ficers and the Governor. He also
guestions the authority and legitimacytio¢ State of Hawaii and the United States
of America.

STANDARD OF REVIEW

l. Subject Matter Jurisdiction

Federal Rule of Civil Predure 12(b)(1) authorizes a court to dismiss claims
over which it lacks proper subject matjietisdiction. A court may determine
jurisdiction on a motion to dismiss under Rule 12(b)(1) so long as “the
jurisdictional issue is [not] inextrable from the merits of a caseKingman Reef
Atoll Invs., L.L.C. v. United States41 F.3d 1189, 1195 (9th Cir. 2008). A
plaintiff has the burden of proving that subject-matter jurisdiction in fact exists.
Thornhill Publ'g Co., Inc. vGen. Tel. & Elecs. Corp594 F.2d 730, 733 (9th Cir.
1979).

A challenge to the Court’s subjectiter jurisdiction may be “facial or
factual.” Safe Air for Everyone v. Mey&73 F.3d 1035, 1039 (9th Cir. 2004). In
a facial attack, the party challengingigdiction argues that the allegations
contained in a complaint are insuféait “on their face” to invoke federal
jurisdiction. Id. A facial challenge, thereformirrors a traditional motion to

dismiss analysis. The Courust take all allegations contained in the pleading “to



be true and draw all reasonablérences in [plaintiff's] favor.”Wolfe v.
Strankman392 F.3d 358, 362 (9th Cir. 2004).

Il. Failure To State A Claim

Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 12(®) permits a motion to dismiss for
failure to state a claim upon which rél@n be granted. Pursuant&shcroft v.
Igbal, “[tjo survive a motion to dismiss, amplaint must contain sufficient factual
matter, accepted as true, to ‘state a ckaimelief that is plausible on its face.”
555 U.S. 662, 678 (2009) (quotiigll Atlantic Corp. v. Twombj\b50 U.S. 554,
570 (2007)). “[T]he teet that a court must accepttase all of the allegations
contained in a complaint is indpgable to legal conclusions.ld. Accordingly,
“[tIhreadbare recitals of the elememisa cause of action, supported by mere
conclusory statements, do not sufficéd. (citing Twombly 550 U.S. at 555).
Rather, “[a] claim has facial plausibilityhen the plaintiff pleads factual content
that allows the court to draw the readaleanference that the defendant is liable
for the misconduct alleged.rd. (citing Twombly 550 U.S. at 556). Factual
allegations that only permit the courtitder “the mere posbility of misconduct”
do not constitute a short and plain statenoénhe claim showing that the pleader
is entitled to relief as required by Rule 8(a)(R). at 679.

A Rule 12(b)(6) dismissal is proper ainthere is either a “lack of a

cognizable legal theory or the abserof sufficient facts alleged."UMG



Recordings, Inc. v. Shelter Capital Partners, L.IZC8 F.3d 1006, 1014 (9th Cir.
2013) (quotingBalistreri v. Pacifica Police Dep/©901 F.2d 696, 699 (9th Cir.
1990)).

Courts may “consider certain matds—documents attached to the
complaint, documents incorporated by refece in the complaint, or matters of
judicial notice—without converting the motion to dismiss into a motion for
summary judgment.’United States v. Ritchi@42 F.3d 903, 908 (9th Cir. 2003).
Documents whose contents are alleged aomplaint and whose authenticity is
not questioned by any party may alsacbasidered in ruling on a Rule 12(b)(6)
motion to dismiss.See Branch v. Tunnell4 F.3d 449, 453-54 (9th Cir. 1994).

DISCUSSION

Because Piedvache is appearinggepothe Court liberally construes the
Complaint. See Erickson v. ParduS51 U.S. 89, 94 (20073ge also Eldridge v.
Block 832 F.2d 1132, 1137 (9th Cir. 1987) (&Bupreme Court has instructed
the federal courts to liberally construe tinartful pleading’ of pro se litigants.”)
(citing Boag v. MacDougall454 U.S. 364, 365 (1982) (per curiam)). The Court
recognizes that “[u]nless it is absolutelgar that no amendment can cure the
defect . . . a pro se litigant is entitlednotice of the complaint’s deficiencies and
an opportunity to amend prior to dismissal of the actidrutas v. Dep’t of Cory

66 F.3d 245, 248 (9th Cir. 199%5ee also Crowley v. Bannistéi34 F.3d 967,



977-78 (9th Cir. 2013). The Court notest, although he is proceeding pro se,
Piedvache is familiar with his federdurt filing and pleaithg responsibilities.

l. Claims Against Immune Parties Are Dismissed With Prejudice

The Court first addresses the claiagainst official-capacity defendants who
are absolutely immune from suit basedthe allegations in the Complaint.

First, any claim for damages against a federal official in his or her official
capacity is considered an amtiagainst the United StateSierra Club v. Whitman
268 F.3d 898, 901 (9th Cir. 2001). Becatlmze is no evidence or allegation that
the United States has waived its s@wgn immunity in the circumstances
presented here, the Court lacks subjedtengurisdiction over the official-capacity
claims against Senator Istz, Senator Hirono, ari@ongresswoman Gabbard.
Rockefeller v. Bingamar34 F. App’x 852, 855 (10th Cir. 2007). To be clear, to
the extent Piedvache alleges that the f@ld#efendants are liable for failing to take
official action to prevent an alleged cpiracy to violate his constitutional rights,
the federal defendants aresalutely immune and the claims against them are
dismissed with prejudice.

Second, all claims for damages agathstState and state officials acting in

their official capacities are baddy the Eleventh Amendmengee Will v. Mich.

3piedvache has filed previous, unsuccessful astamainst the State of Hawaii and County of
Hawaii Police Department based on prosecutiongrddfic violations ad purported violations
of his copyright.See, e.g 01-cv-00294-HG-KSC; 10-cv-00158-JMS-LEK.
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Dep’t State Police491 U.S. 58, 71 (1989%.apasan v. Allain478 U.S. 265, 275
(1986);Kentucky. Graham 473 U.S. 159, 166-67 (198%ennhurst State Sch. &
Hosp. v. Haldermam65 U.S. 89, 99 (19843ge also Linville v. HawaiB74 F.
Supp. 1095, 1103 (D. Haw. 1994) (StateHafvaii has not waived its sovereign
immunity for civil rights action®rought in federal courtgherez v. Haw. Dep’t of
Educ, 396 F. Supp. 2d 1138, 1142-43 (DwWH2005) (dismissing claims against
state agency and state official irs lufficial capacity based on Eleventh
Amendment immunity). Thus, Eleventh A&mdment immunity bars all claims for
damages against Governor Ige in his official capacity.

Accordingly, all official-capacityglaims for damages against Senator
Schatz, Senator HironooGgresswoman Gabbard, andw@rnor Ige are dismissed
with prejudice.

Il. The Complaint Fails To State A Claim

Liberally construed, Bdvache alleges violatio$ Section 1983, 42 U.S.C.
8 1986, copyright law, the Racketeerinfjuenced Corrupt Organizations Act
(“RICO”), and the federal criminal codeNone of these clais is legally tenable

or plausible for the reasons that follow.

“The Complaint states that “the basis for fetleoairt jurisdiction is &ederal question based on
the following: The 4th Amendment[;] the 8&mendment[;] Title 42Section 1986[;] Title 18
Section 1961[;] Title 18 Sectn 241[;] Title 18 Section 242][.]”

9



A. The Complaint Fails To State A Section 1983 OBivens Claim

There are numerous problems with 8extion 1983 claims alleged in the
Complaint® To state a claim wter Section 1983, a plaintiff must allege two
essential elements: (1) that a right secured by the Constitution or laws of the
United States was violated, and (2) tthed alleged violation was committed by a
person acting under color of lawest v. Atkins487 U.S. 42, 48 (1988).

First, the Complaint fails to stat claim for violation of the Eighth
Amendment, as there are no allegations fhatlvache is confined, in custody, or
imprisoned by any governmen®ee Bell v. Wolfisi41 U.S. 520, 535 n.16 (1979)
(claims by prisoners arise under the Crausd Unusual Punishments Clause of the
Eighth Amendment)see also United States v. Loy&28 U.S. 303, 317-18 (1946)
(“Eighth Amendment scrutiny is appropriairly after the State has complied with
the constitutional guarantees traoiitally associated with criminal
prosecutions. . . . [T]he &e does not acquire the powermpunish with which the
Eighth Amendment is concerned until aftdnas secured a formal adjudication of
guilt in accordance with due process aflg. To the extent he argues in
opposition that he was charged excessivedior bail for his release from custody,

he fails to plausibly allege facts sapport the claim that any defendant was

>To the extent Piedvache attempts to bringateaims against the federal defendants in their
individual capacities, the Court liberaltpnstrues the allegations as brought umiieens v. Six
Unknown Federal Narcotics Agen#03 U.S. 388 (1971).

10



responsible for setting the terms of his b&ke, e.gGalen v. Cnty. of Los
Angeles477 F.3d 652, 663 (9th Cir. 2007P(frsuant to traditional tort law
principles of causation, which we appb 8§ 1983 claims, a judicial officer’s
exercise of independent judgment in the course of his official duties is a
superseding cause that breaks thercbcausation linking law enforcement
personnel to the officer’s deston[.]”) (citations omitted)Walden v. CarmagkL56
F.3d 861, 874 (8th Cir. 1998) (Holding ttsdteriff could not be liable under
Section 1983 for violating right to beee from excessive bail, even if he
recommended a bail amount to the judiotiicer who set plaintiffs’ bail, because
“setting the bail bond is entirely at the discretion of the presiding judgeg)also
Alfred v. Gillespie2013 WL 2096452, at *5 (INev. Apr. 18, 2013)adopted by
2013 WL 2096431 (D. Nev. Mai4, 2013) (“The plain meaning of ‘excessive
bail’ does not require thatbe beyond one’s means, onhat it be greater than
necessary to achieve the purposes fackvbail is imposed.” To survive on a
§ 1983 claim, the plaintiff must allege that the defendants were the *actual and
proximate cause of his h@nhancement.™) (citingsalen 477 F.3d at 661—-63).
Consequently, the Eighth Amendment claim fails.

Second, Piedvache fails to stateaurth Amendment claim based upon the
allegations relating to his Jany&, 2016 arrest. To the text he attempts to state

an excessive force violation, his claisr® impermissibly vague. The Fourth

11



Amendment prohibits the use of excessivedaarising in the context of an arrest
or investigatory stop of a free citizeBee Graham v. Conno490 U.S. 386, 395
(1989). To state a claim for excessive for@)aintiff must allege facts to support
that an official used or caused toumsed objectively unreasonable force against
him. See Brosseau v. Haugéi3 U.S. 194, 197 (2004). Beyond the specific
prohibition of excessive force, th@#rth Amendment generally proscribes
unreasonable intrusions on one’s bodilegrity and other harassing and abusive
behavior that rises to thevie of ‘unreasonable seizure Fontana v. Haskin®262
F.3d 871, 878-79 (9th Cir. 2001) (determinthgt police officer’s “sexual verbal
and physical predation against a handai#aestee” on ride to police station
violated Fourth Amendment). Piedvathargument that the individual officers
violated his constitutional rights byughing at him on Janua2, 2016 is
insufficient. SeeMem. In Opp. at unnumbered pagé€i8e was arrested in spite of
his conversation with the officers andshendured ‘mental and physical suffering;
insomnia; worry; financial insecurity; andes$s and strain in relationships with his
friends and family.['] Hewas also subjected tadrcule and embarrassment not
only by the public, but also by the officers.”n any event, no cause of action for
ridicule by officers existsSeeOltarzewski v. Ruggier@30 F.2d 136, 139 (9th

Cir. 1987) (Holding that “[v]dral harassment or abuse . . . is not sufficient to state

a constitutional deprivation under 42S.C. 8§ 1983.”) (citation omittedyf. Yocum

12



v. Kootenai Cnty.2011 WL 2650217, at *8 (D. |t July 6, 2011) (“There was
not simply verbal abuse but also an alleged improper touching, albeit of very short
duration, and the alleged verbal commtsepreceded and also accompanied the
touching.”).

Further, to the extent the allegatiamild be construed t@lege a Section
1983 claim under the Fourth Amendmémtarrest without probable causee
Beck v. Ohip379 U.S. 89, 90-91 (1964), Piedvache\ikse fails to state a claim.
Whether a police officer has probable caigsarrest is determined by looking at
the facts known to the officer at the time of the arr@sitner v. County of
Washoe759 F. Supp. 630, 634 (D. Nev. 1991). Probable cause exists if the facts
and circumstances within the officeKsowledge and of which the officer has
reasonably trustworthy information are sciéint to warrant a prudent officer in
believing the person committed a crimd. The existence of probable cause
precludes a claim of unlawful arredVyatt v. Cole504 U.S. 158, 165 (1992);
Turner, 759 F. Supp. at 633 (acknowledging thell-established principle that “a
police officer who arrests with probable saus immune from suit in a civil rights
action”). The Complaintdcks any allegation that tiedividual officers were

without probable cause to arrest himed®iache’s subjective beliefs regarding the

13



authority of the State and his rigbttravel on public roadways free from
governmental regulation are not peetin to the probable cause inquiry.

Third, the Court notes that the @plaint is impernssibly vague with
respect to the conduct of each defendantghess rise to his or her liability. In
particular, under the circumstances préserere, the Court cannot discern or
even conjure any cognizable claimaagst Senator Schatz, Senator Hirono,
Congresswoman Gabbard, or Governor-ge any of their spouses — based upon
his or her own personal conduct. The vague, conclusory allegations of violations
of federal law or constitutinal rights are insufficientlglleged with respect to
these defendantsSee Nichols v. LogaB55 F. Supp. 2d 1155, 1165 (S.D. Cal.
2004) (“A person deprives another ‘of a constitutional right, within the meaning of
section 1983, if he does an affirmative garticipates in another’s affirmative
acts, or omits to perform an act whichisd¢egally required to do that causes the
deprivation of which the platiff complains.”) (quotingJohnson v. Duffy588
F.2d 740, 743 (9th Cir. 1978)). To the exttthe claims against any official are
based upon supervisory liability or a policy promulgated by the supervisor, the

Complaint fails to identify a specific poy or establish a “direct causal link”

®In any event, there is no recognized righditive a motor vehicle without complying with
applicable licensing lawsSee, e.gHallstrom v. City of Garden Cify991 F.2d 1473, 1477 (9th
Cir. 1993);Nevada v. Matlear2009 WL 1810759, at *2 (D. Nev. June 24, 206@itenback v.
Breaux 690 F. Supp. 1551, 1553-55 (W.D. La. 1988k alsdJnited States v. Kingsle241
F.3d 828, 838 (6th Cir. 2000 constitutional right to a driver’s licens#)iller v. Reed 176
F.3d 1202, 1205-06 (9th Cir. 1999) (no fundamaknght to drivea motor vehicle).

14



between that policy and the alleged constitutional deprivattae, e.g., City of
Canton v. Harris489 U.S. 378, 385 (198Q)viatt v. Pearce954 F.2d 1470, 1474
(9th Cir. 1992)see also Taylor v. Lis880 F.2d 1040, 1045 (9th Cir. 1989) (“A
supervisor is only liable for constitutional violations of his subordinates if the
supervisor participated in or directee thiolations, or knew of the violations and
failed to act to prevent them.”).

Fourth, even if Piedvache could stateEighth or Fourth Amendment claim
premised on Section 1983, he cannot dagainst most of the defendants named
in the Complainf. The federal officials are imame from suit in their individual
capacities for any allegefailure to take a legislatevaction on behalf of Piedvache
under the Speech or Debata@e of the ConstitutiorSeeSupreme Court of
Virginia v. Consumers Union of U.S., Ind46 U.S. 719, 731 (1980) (“[T]he
Speech or Debate Clause immuniZesmgressmen from suits for either
prospective relief odamages.”) (citindgcastland v. United States Servicemen’s
Fund 421 U.S. 491, 502-503 (19759¢chmidt v. Contra Costa Cnt$93 F.3d
1122, 1132 (9th Cir. 2012) (“Legislamare entitled to ‘absolute common-law
iImmunity against civil suits for their dgslative acts, whicls parallel to the

immunity provided by the Speech orlizge Clause.”) (citation omitted).

’As discussed previously, the fedkand state officials are immufrem suit in their official
capacities.
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Further, Section 1983 claims do m&nerally lie against private parties,
such as the Hawaii Tribune Heral@lo state a claim under Section 1983, a
plaintiff must allege the violation wa®mmitted by a person acting under color of
law. Individuals and private entiti@se not normally liable under Section 1983,
given these requirements, because theg @t generally acting under color of
state law, and . . . ‘[cJonclusionarifeggations, unsupportday facts, [will be]
rejected as insufficierib state a claim under the Civil Rights ActPrice v. State
of Haw, 939 F.2d 702, 708 (9th Cir. 1991) (citidgnes v. Cmty. Redev. Agency
733 F.2d 646, 649 (9th Cit984) (citation omitted)),ugar v. Edmondson Oil Co
457 U.S. 922, 936 (1982). The ultimate issudetermining whether a person is
subject to suit under Section 1983 is wiegtthe alleged infringement of federal
rights is fairly attributable to the governmei8utton v. Providence St. Joseph
Med. Ctr, 192 F.3d 826, 835 (9th Cit999) (citation omitted)See Lugar457
U.S. at 939 (“Action by a private party purstémthis statute, without something
more, was not sufficient ostify a characterization of that party as a ‘state
actor.”). The Complaintféers no facts to support a finding that the newspaper
acted under color of state law fourposes of Section 1983 liability.

In short, Piedvache fails to set foftittual content that allows the Court to
draw the reasonable inference thay aamed defendant is liable for any

misconduct alleged.
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B. The Complaint Fails To State A Section 1986 Claim

To the extent Piedvache attemptsiiege a violation of Section 1986, he
fails to plausibly allege a requisite Secti1985 conspiracy in violation of his civil
rights® To properly assert such a claime@rache must “allege specific facts to
support the existence of a cpiraicy among the defendantsBuckey v. Cnty. of
Los Angeles968, 791, 794 (9th Cir. 199Karim-Panahi v. Los Angeles Police
Dep't, 839 F.2d 621, 626 (9th Cir. 1988). Hwist allege that defendants
conspired or acted jointly in conceamd that some overt act was done in
furtherance of the conspiracfaykes v. State of CajJit97 F.2d 197, 200 (9th Cir.
1974). To state a claim foonspiracy in this contexa plaintiff must plead that
“two or more persons conspire[d]rfthe purpose of impeding, hindering,

obstructing, or defeating . the due course of justice any State or Territory,

842 U.S.C. § 1986 provides:

Every person who, having knowledge thay of the wrongs conspired to
be done, and mentioned in section 188%his title, are about to be
committed, and having power to prevent or aid in preventing the
commission of the same, glects or refuses so to, if such wrongful act
be committed, shall be liable to the party injured, or his legal
representatives, for all damagessezaiby such wrongful act, which such
person by reasonable diligence coulgéhprevented; and such damages
may be recovered in an action oe ttase; and any number of persons
guilty of such wrongful neglect or refusal may be joined as defendants in
the action; and if the death of apgirty be caused by any such wrongful
act and neglect, the legal representgiof the deceased shall have such
action therefor, and may recovest exceeding $5,000 damages therein,
for the benefit of the widow of theedeased, if there be one, and if there
be no widow, then for the benefit thfe next of kin of the deceased. But
no action under the provisions of tissction shall be sustained which is
not commenced within one year after the cause of action has accrued.

17



with intent to deny to any citizen the egpeotection of the laws . . ..” 42 U.S.C.
8 1985(2). Section 1985 therefore requii@s allegation of @ss-based animus
for the statement of a claim” under its second clatx#tman v. Cnty. of Santa
Clara, 995 F.2d 898, 908-09 (9th Cir. 1993) (internal quotations omitted).
Piedvache fails to include such an altegain the Complaint. Accordingly, he
fails to state a claim for conspiracy und@ection 1985 and likewasfails to allege
a Section 1986 violation.

C. The Complaint Fails ToState A Civil RICO Claim

The Complaint vaguely ferences “racketeering” and Title 18 Section 1961.
SeeComplaint at 4, 6. To the exteneBvache attempts @dlege a civil RICO
claim, he must demonstrate “(1) condugt@Ran enterprise (3) through a pattern
(4) of racketeering activity and, additionathust establish that (5) the defendant
caused injury to plaintiff's business or propertfChaset v. Fleer/Skybox Int'l, L.P
300 F.3d 1083, 1086 (9th Cir. 20Q@2)ting 18 U.S.C. §8 1962(c), 1964(c3Ee
also18 U.S.C. § 1961. The Complaint does satisfy any of these elements. Nor
does it identify the predicate acts that form the basis of the alleged “scheme of
racketeering.”See Graf v. People2008 WL 4189657, *6 (C.D. Cal. Sept. 4,
2008) (citingSavage v. Council on American-Islamic Relations,, @08 WL
2951281, at *14 (N.D. Cal. July 25, 2Q0@&nding that a RICO claim was

insufficient where plaintiff set forth “redundant narrative of allegations and
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conclusions of law, but [madep attempt to allege whedcts are material to his
claims under the RICO statutar, what facts are used sopport what claims under
particular subsections of RICO”); ak@deral Reserve BarK San Francisco v.
HK Systemsl1997 WL 227955, at *3 (N.D. Cal. Ap24, 1997) (finding that a
complaint was insufficient for failure tadentify exactly which acts are ‘predicate
acts’ for RICO liability™)).

D. The Complaint Fails To State A Copyright Claim

Piedvache maintains that “he has caoglyted his name with the copyright
office of the United States Copyright Qféi — Trademark and dde name.” Mem.
In Opp. at unnumbered page. He faults the Hawaii Tribune Herald for
publishing an article on his arrest amdid proceedings by referencing his name,
asserting that the newspaper “did not havpublish his name. They could have
used a variable in its place.. His name is a property right that has been
copyrighted and is an original work of authorship by his mother and is fixed in a
tangible form of his person.id.

The Complaint’s allegation of copght infringement based upon the use of
his name in a newspaper article is frivolo&ee, e.g., Gibson v. Cri&007 WL
2257522, at *1 (N.D. Fla. Aug. 6, 200@ismissing copyright and trademark
claims based on use of name as frivoloBgXers v. Beard2006 WL 2174707, at

*3 (M.D. Pa. June 13, 2006) (dismissingwaaint as frivolous where plaintiff
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claimed that department of corrections personnel used his copyrighted name
without permission)see also generally7 U.S.C. § 102; 37 C.F.R. 202.1 (names
are not proper subject matter for copyrighdtection). Further, the reporting of
statements made during open, public tpuoceedings does not support a claim
for copyright infringement. Becausestie claims are frivous and amendment
would be futile, these claims arecacdingly dismissed with prejudice.

E. The Complaint Fails To State A Claim Under The Criminal Code

No civil cause of action exists forolation of the federal criminal code
provisions cited in the Compid, 18 U.S.C. 88 241 and 24%ee Cort v. As22
U.S. 66, 79 (1975). Because amendmveould be futilethese claims are
dismissed with prejudice.

1.  Subject Matter Jurisdiction Is Lacking

Claims may also be dismissed whtre Court does not ka federal subject
matter jurisdiction.Franklin v. Murphy 745 F.2d 1221, 1227 n.6 (9th Cir. 1984);
see alsd-ed. R. Civ. P. 12(h)(3¥5rupo Dataflux v. Atlas Global Grp., L.541
U.S. 567, 593 (2004) (“[I]t is the obligation bbth the district court and counsel to
be alert to jurisdictionalequirements.”). “A partynvoking the federal court’s
jurisdiction has the burden of provitige actual existence of subject matter
jurisdiction.” See Thompson v. McComB® F.3d 352, 353 (9th Cir. 1996).

“Federal courts are courts of limitagisdiction,” possessing “only that power
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authorized by Constitution and statutéJhited States v. Mark$30 F.3d 799, 810
(9th Cir. 2008) (quotingkokkonen v. Guardian Life Ins. C&11 U.S. 375, 377
(1994)). At the pleading stage, a pldintnust allege sufficient facts to show a
proper basis for the Court to assert sgbmatter jurisdiction over the action.
McNutt v. Gen. Motors Acceptance Corp98 U.S. 178, 189 (1936)phnson v.
Columbia Props. Anchorage, L,R137 F.3d 894, 899 (9th Cir. 2006); Fed. R. Civ.
P. 8(a)(1).

Piedvachallegesederalquestion jurisdiction basemh violations of federal
laws? See28 U.S.C. § 1331 (“The district coudball have original jurisdiction of
all civil actions arising under the Constitin, laws, or treaties of the United
States.”). The United &tes Supreme Court has recognized that a “plaintiff
properly invokes 8 1331 jurisdiction” Ipleading “a colorable claim ‘arising’
under the Constitution or laws of the United State&s:baugh v. Y & H Corp 546
U.S. 500, 513 (2006).

As discussed above, he fails to statéa@m for violation of his civil rights,
copyright law, a civil RICO claim, ainder the criminal code. Moreover, the
haphazard references to the United &t&@onstitution, statutes and various

international treaties sttared throughout the @aplaint and Piedvache’s

*The Court acknowledges, however, that Piedvach#eriyes the jusidictional authority of this
Court. SeeMem. in Opp. 1 14 (“Furthermore, this cband any other court of the United States
really has no subject matter jurisdictiover any case here in these islands.”).
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opposition to the motions are not sufficiémicreate federal question jurisdiction.
Any such causes of action are “so patentiyhout merit as to justify the court’s
dismissal for want of jurisdiction.Duke Power Co. v. Galina Environmental
Study Group, In¢ 438 U.S. 59, 70 (1978).

Moreover, his invocation of the Haikan Kingdom, international law, or the
1993 Apology Resolution, Pub. L. No. 1031150, 107 Stat. 1510 (1993), does not
affect the legitimacy of the United&és or this District CourtSee United States
v. Lorenzp 995 F.2d 1448, 1456 (9th Cir. 1998}ate v. Lorenzd/7 Haw. 219,
221,883 P.2d 641, 643 (Ct. App. 199%)pihea v. United StateR0D09 WL
2025316, at *2 (D. Haw. July 10, 200%¥aialeale v. Offices of U.S.
Magistrate(s) 2011 WL 2534348, at *2 (D. Haw. June 24, 2011) (“The Ninth
Circuit, this court, and Hawisstate courts have all hetbat the laws of the United
States and the State of Hawaii applytandividuals in this State.”).

Finally, even if the Court had jurigtion over any remaining claim — which
it does not — the State criminal proceedingse initiated prior to proceedings on
the merits in the instant federal actiand abstention would be appropriatee
Polykoff v. Collins816 F.2d 1326, 1332 (9th Cir. 198¥)punger v. Harris401

U.S. 37 (1971°

1%To the extent Piedvache asks the Courtansfer venue of his ongaj state court case —
presumably the prosecution of his traffic violatienthe Court is without the authority to do so.
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Accordingly, the Court is without ¢hauthority to adjudicate these claims,
and the Complaint is DISMISSED.

V. Limited Leave To Amend Is Granted

The Court is mindful that “[u]nlessig absolutely clear that no amendment
can cure the defect . . . a pro se litig@rentitled to notice of the complaint’'s
deficiencies and an opportunity to amdeprior to dismissal of the actionl’ucas
v. Dep’t of Corr, 66 F.3d 245, 248 (9th Cir. 1995). “A district court, however,
does not abuse its discretion in denyieave to amend where amendment would
be futile.” Flowers v. First Hawaiian Bank95 F.3d 966, 976 (9th Cir. 2008ge
also Sisseton-Wahpeton Sioux Tribe v. United St@@eE.3d 351, 356 (9th Cir.
1996) (affirming the district court’s dealiof leave to amend “[b]ecause the
proposed claim would be redundant and futile”).

As discussed above, the copyrightdariminal law claims are dismissed
with prejudice. Moreover, the claimsrfdamages against the federal and state
governmental officials in their offial capacities are barred by sovereign
immunity. Consequently, given the Cosrtismissal of the claims against them
based on immunity and jurisdictionaloginds, the Court finds that Piedvache
cannot amend the Complaint to overcaime grounds on which these claims for
damages are barred against Senatba&¢ Senator Hirono, Congresswoman

Gabbard, and Governor Ige in their offictapacities. These claims are dismissed
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with prejudice. See, e.g., Heilan v. Sanche583 F. App’x 837, 839-40 (9th Cir.
2014) (holding that “the district court did not abuse its discretion by refusing to
grant leave to amend becaukese aspects of the complaint could not be cured by
amendment”) (citingVeilburg v. Shapirp488 F.3d 1202, 1205 (9th Cir. 2007));
Shiraishi v. United State2011 WL 4527393, at *8 (D. Haw. Sept. 27, 2011)
(“Given the court’s dismissal based onigdictional and immunity grounds, . . .
Plaintiff plainly cannot amend his Compiato overcome the multiple grounds on
which his suit is barred.”).

The dismissal of the following clais is without prejudice: Section 1983
claim based upon violations of the Ftbuand Eighth Amendments; Section 1986
claim; and civil RICO clan. Piedvache is granted limited leave to amend only
these claims in order to attempt to cure the deficenicientified above. To be
clear, any amended complamay not re-allegeopyright or criminal law claims
dismissed with prejudice by this orderamy official-capacity claims for damages
against Senator Schatz, Senator Hirddongresswoman Gabbard, or Governor
lge.

If Piedvache chooses to file an amded complaint, henust write short,
plain statements telling the Court: (1) the specific basis of this Court’s jurisdiction;
(2) the constitutional or statutory right Riaff believes was violated; (3) the name

of the defendant who violated that rigf#) exactly what that defendant did or
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failed to do; (5) how the action or inactiohthat defendant is connected to the
violation of Plaintiff's rights; and (6) what specific injury Plaintiff suffered
because of that defendant’s conduct. rRitiimust repeat this process for each
person or entity that he names as a defendérlaintiff fails to affirmatively link
the conduct of each named defendant whehspecific injury he suffered, the
allegation against that defendant will dismissed for failure to state a claim.

An amended complaint generally sugelss a prior complaint, and must be
complete in itself without referente the prior superseded pleadinging v.
Atiyeh 814 F.2d 565, 567 (9th Cir. 198@)erruled in part byLacey v. Maricopa
Cnty,, 693 F.3d 896 (9th Cir. 2012) (en ban®laims dismissed without prejudice
that are not re-alleged in an amendedhplaint may be deemed voluntarily
dismissed.See Lacey693 F.3d at 928 (stating that claims dismissed with
prejudice need not be realleged in an amended complaint to preserve them for
appeal, but claims that are voluntarily disged are considered waived if they are
not re-pled).

The amended complaint must desigrnthat it is the “First Amended
Complaint” and may not incogpate any part of the oiirgal Complaint. Rather,
any specific allegations must be retypedewritten in their entirety. Plaintiff may

include only one claim per count. Fa#uo file an amended complaint by
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November 28, 201awill result in the automatic dismissal of this action without
prejudice.

CONCLUSION

For the foregoing reasons, the Court dismisses this action with limited leave
to amend. The following motions are giegt Governor David Ige and First Lady
Dawn Ige’s Motion to Dismiss (Dkt. N&), and related joinder (Dkt. No. 21);
Senator Mazie Hirono and Sé¢oaBrian Schatz’s Motioto Dismiss (Dkt. No. 8),
and related joinder (Dkt. No. 14); The Honorable Tulsi Gabbard’s Motion to
Dismiss (Dkt. No. 11); Linda Kwok Ka'un Schatz’s Motion to Dismiss (Dkt.
No. 15); Hawaii Police Department’'s Motion to Dismiss (Dkt. No. 17); and
Leighton K. Oshima’s Motion for Joinder (Dkt. No. 23).

Piedvache is granted limited leawefile an amended complaint in
accordance with the terms of this order by no later M@arember 28, 2016 The
Court CAUTIONS Piedvache that failute file an amended complaint by

I

I

I
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November 28, 201awill result in the automatic dismissal of this action without
prejudice.
IT IS SO ORDERED.

Dated: November 2, 202188 Honolulu, Hawal'i.
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Piedvache v. Ige, et.alCV 16-00138 DKW-RLPORDER GRANTING

(1) GOVERNOR DAVID IGE AND FIRS T LADY DAWN IGE’S MOTION
TO DISMISS; (2) SENATOR MAZI E HIRONO AND SENATOR BRIAN
SCHATZ'S MOTION TO DISMI SS; (3) THE HONORABLE TULSI
GABBARD’S MOTION TO DISM ISS; (4) LINDA KWOK KAI YUN
SCHATZ'S MOTION TO DISMI SS; AND (5) HAWAII POLICE
DEPARTMENT'S MOTION TO DISMISS
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